
 

    
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
Regular Meeting 

Canton Inland Wetlands and Watercourses Agency 
Thursday, March 10, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. 

Library Community Center, Room F 
40 Dyer Avenue, Canton, CT 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 
ROLL CALL:  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT NOT RELATED TO AGENDA ITEM: 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 

1. Discussion of Shallot Meadow Subdivision and 188 Bahre Corner Road 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 

1. File #02-16-1135; 594 Albany Turnpike; Assessor’s Map 25; Parcel 1010594; Zone R-2; request 
to construct a single family home; David and Jacqueline Mott, applicants/owners 

 
OTHER BUSINESS: 
 

1. Approve Minutes of the January 14, 2016 Regular Meeting and February 11, 2016 Regular 
Meeting 
 

2. Applications Received After Agenda Posted 
 

3. Authorized Agent 
 

4. Any Other Recent Enforcement Issues 
 

5. Staff Report 
 

ADJOURNMENT:  





















































































 

 1 

 2 

 3 

 4 

DRAFT MINUTES 5 

Regular Meeting 6 

Canton Inland Wetlands and Watercourses Agency 7 

January 14, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. 8 

Community Center, Room F 9 
 10 

 11 

CALL TO ORDER – The regular meeting of January 14, 2016 was called to order at 7:05 p.m.  12 

 13 

PRESENT – David Sinish, Al Bombassei, Robert Bahre and David Shepard arrived at 7:45 p.m. 14 

ABSENT – Richard Van de Bogart 15 

ALSO PRESENT – Assistant Town Planner Emily Anyzeski and Recording Secretary Loren Kiefer 16 

 17 

PUBLIC COMMENT NOT RELATED TO AGENDA ITEM – None 18 

 19 

MOTION:   D. Sinish made a motion to amend the agenda to consider new business item number 1 20 

before old business item number 1. R. Bahre seconded the motion, which passed unanimously 3-0-0. 21 
 22 

NEW BUSINESS 23 

 24 

1. File 12-15-1132; 133 East Mountain Road; Assessor’s Map 23; Parcel 2490133; Zone R-3; 25 

Request for perimeter pond maintenance for removal of existing cattails; Northeast Diving 26 

Services, applicant; Robert and Kathleen Hollis, owners – Mr. & Mrs. Hollis were present along 27 

with a representative from Northeast Diving. This is the first occurrence in over 50 years for the 28 

property to be dredged. Northeast Diving stated that actual dredging should not be needed, and that 29 

the project is actually pond maintenance to extract up to 15-foot deep invasive species by using 30 

amphibious excavator or a modified excavator using DEEP approved, and environmentally friendly 31 

fluids. Tarps will be laid down to contain and dry out the cattails, roots and phragmites pulled out of 32 

the pond. There will be up to 300 yards of wet material pulled out. There are arrangements for a local 33 

organic farm to retrieve the removed sediment. Northeast Diving said there is easy access around the 34 

perimeter of the pond. The primary work zone will be at the southern end of the pond. The root 35 

system must be taken out. There will be exposure to the dam; therefore, the property will be 36 

accessible for possible State of CT access and inspection. There is a 100 foot edge; the materials will 37 

be placed on the downhill of the property in order to avoid re-rooting back into the property. There will 38 

be a silt fence put into place, with a solid turbidity curtain around the outward structure with a floating 39 

boom surrounding it. No material will be taken off-site by Northeast Diving. Once the extracted 40 

materials dry out, it will be 20 to 40 inches thick. Recent testing of the soil and muck tested clean and 41 

positive, with no leaching from a septic. The proposed end-date of this project will be by February-42 

end, 2016. During the spring in April of 2016, there will be a return with divers to follow up with a 43 

potato rake to extract any further growth. 44 

 45 

MOTION:  D. Sinish moved to approve File 12-15-1132; 133 East Mountain Road; Assessor’s Map 46 

23; Parcel 2490133; Zone R-3; Request for perimeter pond maintenance for removal of existing 47 

cattails; Northeast Diving Services, applicant; Robert and Kathleen Hollis, owner, with the following 48 

conditions:  49 

 50 

a. Additional silt fence installed downstream of the dam; 51 

b. Turbidity curtain placed around the outlet structure; and 52 

c. All fueling will be done in a separate location. 53 

 54 

A. Bombassei seconded the motion, which passed unanimously 3-0-0.  55 
 56 



 

OLD BUSINESS 57 

 58 

1. File 11-15-1131; 110 Albany Turnpike; Assessor’s Map 36; Parcel 1010110; Zone B; 59 

Construction of a new gravity retaining wall; W/S Peak Canton Properties, LLC c/o Denise 60 

Robidoux, applicants; W/S Peak Canton Properties, LLC c/o WS Asset Management, Inc., 61 

owners – Ms. Robidoux and Mr. Emile Pierides of BL Companies confirmed a site-walk had taken 62 

place on January 5, 2016, with Mr. Shepard and Mr. Bahre; a quorum was not present for the site-63 

walk. Mr. Pierides stated that there will be a plan to have a drain at both the top and the bottom of the 64 

wall. The top drain does not currently show on the plan. A splash pad will be placed at the bottom to 65 

avoid any possible erosion. There will be 6 to 8 inches of crushed stone in between the walls. A crane 66 

will be placed and stay at the base of the work zone, and used to move materials in and out of the 67 

work zone. The materials will be stock-piled at the back of the parking lot. At this time, there is only 68 

the one wall that needs to be remedied. The other existing walls on the property may need periodic 69 

caps replaced, but not a new wall. The work will be completed within a two-year term, with actual 70 

construction not starting until September of 2016. 71 
 72 

MOTION:  D. Sinish moved to approve File 11-15-1131; 110 Albany Turnpike; Assessor’s Map 36; 73 

Parcel 1010110; Zone B; Construction of a new gravity retaining wall; W/S Peak Canton Properties, 74 

LLC c/o Denise Robidoux, applicants; W/S Peak Canton Properties, LLC c/o WS Asset Management, 75 

Inc., owners, with the following conditions: 76 

 77 

a. Granting of waiver 7.4D; 78 

b. Splash pads at both outlet pipes; 79 

c. Add a curtain drain to the plan, to be located on the patio surface (as a buried pipe with stone on 80 

top); 81 

d. Add absorbent pads when the excavator needs to be re-fueled; 82 

e. Add a construction note for the excavator to go up and down only once, except for repairs; and 83 

f. All materials need to be on-site before work starts. 84 

 85 

D. Shepard seconded the motion, which passed unanimously 4-0-0. 86 

 87 

OTHER BUSINESS 88 

 89 

MOTION:   D. Shepard made a motion to amend the agenda to review other business item number 4, 90 

Shallot Meadow Subdivision, to be considered as item number 1. Mr. Bombassei seconded the motion, 91 

which passed unanimously 4-0-0. 92 

 93 

1. Any Other Recent Enforcement Issues 94 

 95 

a. Shallot Meadow Subdivision – Ms. Anyzeski outlined a complaint made about the subdivision’s 96 

development of dirty water spreading from Lot #7 which is currently under construction. There are 97 

3 or 4 layers of erosion under Lot #7. There is currently no runoff into the road. A silt fence needs 98 

to be reinforced with hay bales for erosion control. The pond is being leached into since the 99 

plunge pool is not catching the sediment. Mr. French was present who stated that the issue is the 100 

dirty water which is spreading, and encroaching on Bill Olsen’s property despite the trench that 101 

was constructed to prevent this. Lot #7 is the very steepest lot on the subdivision and it is the last 102 

lot being developed. Once completed this April with landscaping, there will no longer be an issue 103 

with runoff of muddy water on this 30-foot steep lot. Mr. French further stated that Bill Olsen has 104 

had a culvert on his property; however, the culvert had never been installed by Mr. Olsen. The 105 

culvert may have prevented the spreading of dirty water. D. Shepard stated that there is no 106 

current evidence of a systemic problem. The silt fence should be tightened up and bring in 107 

additional hay bales. E&S should be reinforced to ensure the current system remains intact to 108 

avoid any further issues. 109 

 110 

111 



 

b. Mills Pond Damming Activity – Ms. Anyzeski mentioned that a complaint had been made on 112 

January 7, 2016. A beaver dam may be broken up in pieces, a portion at a time since beavers 113 

inhabit the dam. Town property and residential property will be disrupted with possible flooding. 114 

D. Shepard stated that the activity at the location needs guidelines and proper notice provided to 115 

perimeter properties. It was noted that Mr. Bob Martin had sought prior guidance from the DEEP; 116 

however, an application should be made by Bob Martin before any further activity takes place.  117 

 118 

2. Approval of Minutes of December 10, 2015 119 

 120 

MOTION:  D. Shepard approved December 10, 2015 as amended. Mr. Bahre seconded the motion, 121 

which passed unanimously 4-0-0. 122 

 123 

3. Applications Received After Agenda Posted – None 124 

 125 

4. Authorized Agent –  126 

 127 

a. File  01-16-1133AA; 88 Simonds Avenue; Assessor’s Map 30; Parcel 4820088; Zone R1; 128 

Removal of trees within the Upland Review Area, northeast of the gravel parking lot; Town 129 

of Canton, applicant/owner – There were six large pines that were located at the northern part 130 

of the lot, they were not in good health and have been removed. There are pending 131 

improvements to the parking surface including arranging the parking farther away from the 132 

wetlands side. 133 

 134 

5. Freedom of Information (FOI) Class; February 3, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. – Ms. Anyzeski mentioned a 135 

reminder to all who are interested, to attend the meeting to be held in Room F of the Canton 136 

Community Center, and not at the Town Hall as previously noted. 137 

 138 

6. Plan of Conservation and Development (POCD) Review – Committee packets contain items for 139 

review. 140 

 141 

7. Staff Report –  142 

 143 

a. Authorized Agent Status – Ms. Anyzeski confirmed that she has completed the DEEP training 144 

and is now qualified to be an Authorized Agent. 145 

b. Abutters notice – The Town of Simsbury sent an abutters notice regarding 63 Woodchuck Hill 146 

Road. The applicant at this address is requesting approval for the repairs and improvements for 147 

an existing drainage system. Ms. Anyzeski announced that February 2, 2016, is the date of the 148 

upcoming meeting with the Conservation Commission. Ms. Anyzeski ensured that notices will be 149 

sent to abutting landowners. 150 

c. Ms. Anyzeski seeks recommendations on how to proceed at 115 Wright Road regarding 151 

replacement of a collapsed pipe. The question was proposed as to whether or not to submit this 152 

as an Authorized Agent application for maintenance. D. Shepard stated that the pipe and water 153 

flow is not intermittent and this item requires an application. 154 
 155 

ADJOURNMENT – MOTION:  D. Shepard moved to adjourn the meeting at 10:08 p.m. D. Bahre 156 

seconded the motion, which passed unanimously 4-0-0. 157 

 158 

Respectfully Submitted, 159 

Loren Kiefer, Recording Secretary 160 

 161 



 

 1 

 2 

 3 

 4 

 5 

 6 

DRAFT MINUTES 7 

Regular Meeting 8 

Canton Inland Wetlands and Watercourses Agency 9 

February 11, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. 10 

Library/Community Center, Room F 11 

 12 

CALL TO ORDER – The regular meeting of February 11, 2016 was called to order at 7:15 p.m.  13 

 14 

PRESENT – David Shepard, David Sinish, Al Bombassei, Robert Bahre and Richard Vandebogart  15 

ABSENT – None 16 

ALSO PRESENT – Assistant Town Planner Emily Anyzeski and Recording Secretary Loren Kiefer 17 

 18 

PUBLIC COMMENT NOT RELATED TO AGENDA ITEM – None 19 

 20 

OLD BUSINESS 21 

 22 

1. Discussion of Shallot Meadow Subdivision and 188 Bahre Corner Road – Ms. Anyzeski has 23 

visited the site and stated that there has been improvement with the erosion control. A second 24 

complaint has been made, whereby this subject has been revised in order to include 188 Bahre 25 

Corner Road. In attendance representing Jouvin Home Builders, was attorney Robert Reeve who 26 

spoke on behalf of Mr. Jouvin. Attorney Reeve stated that there is an unrestricted right to drain. Mr. 27 

Reeve further stated that Mr. George Wallace of the DPW also viewed the area after the initial 28 

complaint, and during a recent substantial rain event he had concluded that there is no obstruction 29 

and that the storm water system is functioning as it should. David Whitney, site engineer, spoke on 30 

the current storm drain and the design of Shallot Meadow Rd. Mr. Whitney described the source of 31 

water drainage as being from area acreage. There is a 32-inch drainage twin pipes used which pick 32 

up 65 acres of drainage. There is also a detention basin which is located on the eastern side along 33 

with 3 watersheds. The development’s southwestern area has a sediment forebay to allow sediment 34 

to settle and stop an overflow. Mr. Whitney expressed that the storm water system is functioning 35 

properly. The old farm road does not have a culvert, and perhaps should, which would have 36 

prevented the water overflow. The basin had been built as according to plan. 37 

 38 

MOTION: Mr. Shepard made a motion that there is no action needed at this time, since all evidence 39 

has been presented and determined that the drainage system is functioning as it should. Mr. Sinish 40 

seconded the motion, which passed unanimously 4-0-0; Mr. Bahre opted for recusal.  41 

 42 

MOTION: Mr. Shepard made a motion to move the second complaint to item number 1 under new 43 

business – 188 Bahre Corner Road. Mr. Sinish seconded the motion, which passed unanimously 4-0-44 

0; Mr. Bahre opted for recusal. 45 

 46 

NEW BUSINESS 47 

 48 

1. Shallot Meadow Subdivision and 188 Bahre Corner Road – Overflow of water drainage onto 49 

abutting property. Attorney David Markowitz was present to discuss the second complaint placed by 50 

Mr. Olsen. Attorney Markowitz addressed the unrestricted right to drain. The Shallot Meadow 51 

Subdivision has an easement on it extended from 188 Bahre Corner Road. Due to a change in 52 

ownership of the subdivision, there was no completion of an original motion with the IWWA, but it may 53 

have been handled with a separate town commission. The amount of water drainage has changed 54 

since pre-development. There is a rock wetland which receives the majority of the overflow, but it 55 



 

cannot sustain the post-development flow of water. Attorney Markowitz stated that a resolution would 56 

be likely if a culvert were to be installed under the old farm road. 57 

 58 

MOTION: Mr. Shepard moved to continue the discussion with the following conditions:  59 

 60 

a. Committee site walk scheduled for 8:00am, Tuesday, March 1, 2016, at the 2
nd

 culvert, Shallot 61 

Meadows. 62 

 63 

Mr. Bombassei seconded the motion, which passed unanimously 4-0-0; Mr. Bahre opted for recusal.  64 
 65 

D. Shepard requested a committee break from the meeting at 9:08 p.m., which reconvened at 9:13 p.m. 66 

 67 

2. Pre-Application Review; 50 Old River Road; Assessor’s Map 34; Parcel 4060050; Zone MCPF; 68 

discussion of redevelopment concepts for the Town Garage; Town of Canton, applicant/owner 69 

– Bob Martin, DPW, made a presentation of the proposed multi-uses of this site, dating from the 2012 70 

proposed use of the site, the current use of the site, and the proposed future use of the site. A 71 

proposed use of the site could increase the river access, enhance the picnic area, enhance the ball 72 

field, and propose a new access road. George Wallace, DPW, spoke on behalf of the regulations 73 

involved including the current DPW facility structure needing a full renovation including adding a new 74 

boiler, roofing and other possible improvements. The DEEP was consulted and suggested that if a 75 

salt shed were added as a 25-square foot building, the flood level should be elevated up to 299 feet. 76 

The river walk pathway could be altered. The old horse barn would remain in place, and used to add 77 

proposed bathrooms and storage. The site drainage would be controlled by creating a divide to avoid 78 

drainage into the river. There will be an oil and water separator system in place with a grease trap 79 

and water pollution control. If needed, the parking lot could be arranged to drain into the ball field. The 80 

roadway surface will be primarily gravel. 81 
 82 

3. File 02-16-1134; 10 East Hill Road; Assessor’s Map 30; Parcel 2430010; Zone MCPF; request to 83 

perform periodic maintenance to beaver dams to prevent flooding; Town of Canton, 84 

applicant/owner – Bob Martin, DPW, spoke on behalf of the beaver dams creating various levels of 85 

rising water. Continued periodic maintenance is an option to keep the dams at bay, or, removal of a 86 

dam when a culvert is blocked and a situation arises that hinders a property or creates a water 87 

overflow onto a road. Some areas of concern include Atwater Street, 21 Dowd, Mills Pond, and High 88 

Valley which may need removal of the dams in the near future. Mr. Martin requests the flexibility to 89 

act on a necessary dam removal, along with a report of proposed activity to the IWWA, in order to 90 

drain the area to a safe, non-damaging water level. Mr. Martin requests a possible chainsaw, if 91 

needed on rare occasion. 92 

 93 

MOTION: Mr. Shepard moved to approve File 02-16-1134; 10 East Hill Road; Assessor’s Map 30; 94 

Parcel 2430010; Zone MCPF; request to perform periodic maintenance to beaver dams to prevent 95 

flooding; Town of Canton, applicant/owner, with the following conditions:  96 

 97 

a. Town of Canton can use manpower only, including picks and chainsaws but no heavy equipment, 98 

anywhere in town where the beaver dams are a threat to town property or private infrastructure 99 

b. Lower water levels to a safe, non-damaging level 100 

c. DPW will notify the authorized agent or IWWA chair, within 48 hours before the work is done 101 

d. Approval is for five years 102 

 103 

Mr. Bahre seconded the motion, which passed unanimously 5-0-0.  104 
 105 

OTHER BUSINESS 106 

 107 

1. Approval of Minutes of January 14, 2016 Regular Meeting – Tabled 108 

 109 

2. Appointment of Ms. Emily Anyzeski as the Town of Canton IWWA Authorized Agent 110 

 111 



 

MOTION: Mr. Shepard moved to approve the appointment of Ms. Emily Anyzeski as the Town of 112 

Canton IWWA Authorized Agent. Mr. Sinish seconded the motion, which passed unanimously 5-0-0.  113 

 114 

3. Applications Received After Agenda Posted – None 115 

 116 

4. Authorized Agent –  117 

 118 

a. Discussion of Mott’s Residence, 594 Albany Turnpike – The property is for sale and has 119 

numerous constrictions. Within the upland review area, a corner of a deck which runs along the 120 

one level house will be taken down. Also to be removed are several residential trees. The intent is 121 

to clean up the property where there is dead vegetation and not a deliberate attempt to create a 122 

view of the river. There is nothing in the wetlands area. Erosion controls are being put into place. 123 

The property owners are working with an engineer. It is a steep lot with digging to take place. The 124 

deck is 86 feet from the Farmington River. An application is being made for the work is in 125 

process. 126 
 127 

5. Any other recent enforcement issues – None  128 

 129 

6. Staff Report – None 130 

 131 

ADJOURNMENT – MOTION: D. Shepard moved to adjourn the meeting at 11:18 p.m. Mr. Bahre 132 

seconded the motion, which passed unanimously 5-0-0. 133 

 134 

Respectfully Submitted, 135 

Loren Kiefer, Recording Secretary 136 

 137 


